
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

December 6, 2016–8:35 a.m.
Escambia County Central Office Complex

3363 West Park Place, Room 104
             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.  
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the November 1, 2016 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for November 2016.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for December 2016.
 

5. Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Public Hearings.  
 

A.    A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
2030 Future Land Use Map, LSA-2016-03

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for transmittal to the Department of Economic
Opportunity (DEO), an Ordinance amending the 2030 Future Land Use Map.

 

B.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter
6, Section 6-0.3 "Definitions", Subsection "I" and Subsection "S"

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC) Chapter 6, Section 6-0.3 "Terms defined," subsection "I" by
adding "Incompatible Development" and Subsection "S" by adding in "Spot



adding "Incompatible Development" and Subsection "S" by adding in "Spot
Zoning" into the LDC.

 

7. Action/Discussion/Info Items.  
 

A. Scenic Highway Overlay Design Change  
 

8. Public Forum.  
 

9. Director's Review.  
 

10. County Attorney's Report.  
 

11. Scheduling of Future Meetings.  
 

The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
January 3, 2017 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

 

12. Announcements/Communications.  
 

13. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  

Agenda Item:

A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the November 1, 2016 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for November 2016.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for December 2016.

Attachments
November 1, 2016 Draft Regular Planning Board Meeting Minutes
Monthly Action Follow-Up
Six Month Outlook



D R A F T
MINUTES OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

 November 1, 2016

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:35 A.M. – 11:05 A.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Bob Cordes   
  Tim Tate, Vice Chairman   
  Wayne Briske, Chairman   
  Edwin Howard   
  Patty Hightower, School Board (non-voting)   
Absent: Alvin Wingate
  Timothy Pyle
  Stephanie Oram, Navy (Non voting)
Staff Present: Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning

Debbie Lockhart, Administrative Assistant
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
John Fisher, Senior Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Juan Lemos, Senior Planner, Planning & Zoning
Bobbie Ellis-Wiggins, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Edwin Howard, Seconded by Bob Cordes 

Motion was made to accept the proof of publication and to waive the
reading of the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Alvin Wingate (ABSENT) 
  Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 



 

4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

A.     
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the October 6, 2016 Rezoning and Regular
Planning Board Meetings.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for October 2016..

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for November 2016.

  

 
  Motion by Edwin Howard, Seconded by Bob Cordes 

Motion was made to approve the minutes from the Rezoning Planning
Board Meeting and the Regular Planning Board Meeting minutes held on
October 4, 2016. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Alvin Wingate (ABSENT) 
  Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 

 

5.  Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.

The Board acknowledged that items B., C., and D. from the October 4,
2016 Planning Board were not addressed at the November 1st Planning
Board meeting but will be addressed at future meetings.

 
  Motion by Bob Cordes, Seconded by Edwin Howard 

Motion was made to accept the November 1, 2016 Regular Planning
Board Meeting Packet.
  

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Alvin Wingate (ABSENT) 
  Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 

 

6.  Public Hearings.
 

A.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending
Chapter 3, Zoning Regulations and Chapter 6, Definitions

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC) Chapter 3, Zoning Regulations, Article 1, General Provisions,
Section 3-1.4 Allowed Uses; Article 2, Mainland Districts, Sections 3-2.2,

  



3-2.4, 3-2.6, 3-2.9, 3-2.10, and 3-2.11; Article 4 Perdido Key Districts,
Sections 3-4.5, 3-4.6 and 3-4.7; Article 5, Pensacola Beach Districts,
Sections 3-5.4, 3-5.6 and 3-5.7 and Chapter 6, Definitions, Section 6-0.3
Terms defined, to address the compassionate use of low-THC and medical
cannabis.
 

 
  Motion by Bob Cordes, Seconded by Wayne Briske 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 3 - 2 Approved
 

Voted No: Tim Tate 
  Edwin Howard 
Other: Alvin Wingate (ABSENT) 
  Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 

 

B.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending
Chapter (3), Article 2, Section(s) 3-2.2-3-2.15, Chapter (3), Article 4
Section(s) 3-4.2-3-4.9, Site and Building Requirements.

That the Board review and forward to the board of County Commissioners
(BCC) for review, an Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC)
Chapter 3, Article 2, Section 3-2.2 “Agricultural (Agr),” Section 3-2.3 “Rural
residential District (RR),” Section 3-2.4 “Rural Mixed-Use District (RMU),”
Section 3-2.5 “Low Density Residential District (LDR),” Section 3-2.6 “Low
Density Mixed-Use District (LDMU),” Section 3-2.7 “Medium Density
Residential District (MDR),” Section 3-2.8 “High Density Residential District
(HDR),” Section 3-2.9 “High Density Mixed-Use District (HDMU),” Section
3-2.10 “Commercial District (COM),” Section 3-2.11 “Heavy Commercial and
Light Industrial (HC/LI),” Section 3-2.12 “Industrial (Ind),” Section
“Recreation (Rec),” Section 3-2.14 “Conservation (Con),” Section 3-2.15
“Public (Pub),” Chapter 3, Article 4, Section 3-4.2 “Low Density Residential
(LDR-PK),” Section 3-4.3 “Medium Density Residential (MDR-PK),” Section
3-4.4 “High Density Residential (HDR-PK),” Section 3-4.5 “Commercial
(Com-PK),” Section 3-4.6 “Commercial Core (CC-PK),” Section 3-4.7
“Commercial Gateway (CG-PK),” Section 3-4.8 “Planned Resort (PR-PK),”
and Section 3-4.9 “Recreation (Rec-PK)," to modify "Site And Building
Requirements".

  

 
  Motion by Tim Tate, Seconded by Edwin Howard 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Alvin Wingate (ABSENT) 
  Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 



 

C.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of the Updated Brownsville
Redevelopment Plan and Recommend Determination of Conformance With
the Comprehensive Plan

That the Planning Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) adoption of the updated Brownsville
Redevelopment Plan and determine that the plan is in conformance with
the local Comprehensive Plan.

  

 
  Motion by Bob Cordes, Seconded by Tim Tate 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Alvin Wingate (ABSENT) 
  Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 

 

7.  Action/Discussion/Info Items.
 

A.  Outdoor Signs Discussion.
 

8.  Public Forum.
 

9.  Director's Review.
 

10.  County Attorney's Report.
 

11.  Scheduling of Future Meetings.
 

 The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
December 6, 2016 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

12.  Announcements/Communications.
 

13.  Adjournment.
 



 
Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Kayla Meador, Board Clerk 
 
DATE:  November 23, 2016 
 
RE:  Monthly Action Follow-Up Report for November 2016. 
 
The following is a status report of Planning Board (PB) agenda items for the prior month of 
November. Some items include information from previous months in cases where final 
disposition has not yet been determined. Post-monthly actions are included (when known) as of 
report preparation date. Items are listed in chronological order, beginning with the PB initial 
hearing on the topic. 
 
PROJECTS, PLANS, & PROGRAMS 
 
Ensley Redevelopment 
08-02-16 PB recommended approval 
 
Atwood Redevelopment 
9-6-16  PB recommended approval 
 
COMMITTEES & WORKING GROUP MEETINGS 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
  
• Text Amendments: 

CPA-2016-02 
OLF Saufley Airport 
08-02-16  PB Recommended Approval 
09-01-16  BCC approved transmittal to DEO 
 
CPA-2016-03 
Definition added for “Limited Ag Uses” 
10-06-16 PB recommended approval 
11-03-16 BCC approved transmittal to DEO 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE 
PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32505 

PHONE: 850-595-3475 
FAX: 850-595-3481 

www.myescambia.com 

1 
 



• Map Amendments: 
 
LSA-2016-02 
Saufley Field Road 
09-06-16  PB recommended approval 
10-06-16 BCC approved transmittal to DEO 
 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCES 
 
Residential Uses in Zoning Districts 
09-6-16 PB recommended more review by staff 
  On hold – waiting for input from County Attorney’s Office  
 
OSP-2016-01 
09-06-16 PB recommended approval 
12-08-16 BCC meeting (first of two) 
 
AICUZ  Maps 
09-06-16 PB recommended approval 
12-08-16 BCC meeting 
 
REZONING CASES 
 
1. Rezoning Case Z-2016-07 

10-06-16 PB recommended denial 
11-03-16 BCC denied 

 
2. Rezoning Case Z-2016-08 

10-06-16 PB recommended approval contingent upon LSA-2016-02 
 
3. Rezoning Case Z-2016-09 

10-06-16 PB recommended approval 
11-03-16 BCC approved 

2 
 



PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE 
SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR DECEMBER 2016 

(Revised 11/23/16)  
 

A.H. = Adoption Hearing         T.H. = Transmittal Hearing          P.H. = Public Hearing 
* Indicates topic/date is estimated—subject to staff availability for project completion and/or citizen liaison  

 

Meeting Date 
 

LDC Changes and/or 
Public Hearings 

Comprehensive 
Plan 

Amendments 
Rezoning 

Reports, 
Discussion and/or 

Action Items 

Tuesday, December 6, 2016 • Spot Zoning 
 

• LSA-2016-03 • Z-2016-10 
• Z-2016-11 
• Z-2016-12 
• Z-2016-13 
 

• Scenic Hwy Overlay 
Design Change 

Tuesday, January 3, 2016 • 2500 Foot Radius • Tentative: 
McDonald’s 
Property (Jail 
site) 

• Tentative: 
McDonald’s 
Property (Jail 
site) 

 

Tuesday, February 7, 2017     

Tuesday, March 7, 2017     

Tuesday, April 4, 2017     

Tuesday, May 2, 2017     

 
Disclaimer: This document is provided for informational purposes only. Schedule is subject to change. Verify all topics on the current 
meeting agenda one week prior to the meeting date. 
 

** Residential Uses Ordinance – waiting on input from the County Attorney’s Office 
** Signs Ordinance – waiting on input from the BCC 
** CPA-2016-01 Extraction and Reclamation – on hold 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. A.           
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the

2030 Future Land Use Map, LSA-2016-03
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
 A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the 2030 Future
Land Use Map, LSA-2016-03

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
transmittal to the Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO), an Ordinance amending
the 2030 Future Land Use Map.

BACKGROUND:
The agent requests a Future Land Use (FLU) map amendment to change the FLU
category of a 93.01 (+/-) acres parcel from (I) Industrial FLU to (MU-S) Mixed-Use
Suburban FLU.  The zoning designation for the referenced parcel is (I) Industrial District
(non-cumulative). The applicant is aware that the current zoning and proposed FLU are
not compatible.  The applicant plans on submitting a rezoning request at a later time for
FLU and Zoning compatibility. The applicant understands that a rezoning approval will be
necessary to make the FLU compatible.
 
The subject parcel can be accessed along Isaacs Lane and Beulah Road.  It is located
north of SR 10 (US 90A)/West Nine Mile Road and south of Interstate 10. The property is
surrounded by heavy vegetation to the north and to the east.  Residential homes are
located adjacent to the south and across Isaacs lane to the west.
 
The applicant has indicated that the proposed activity will be for an approximate 110 lot
subdivision. This is in anticipations demand for the growth of the expansion of Navy
Federal Credit Union Campus as they move their headquarters to Escambia County.
 
The subject parcel had a FLU change from MU-S Mixed-Suburban to (I) Industrial, case
number LSA-2014-02 (14-3ESR) in 2014. Also the parcel was rezoned from (VAG-2),
Villages Agricultural District to (ID-2) General Industrial District, case number Z-2014-12
on September 4, 2014.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:



No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency
by Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments
are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the Comprehensive Plan will  be filed with the Department of
State following adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the Comp Plan and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
LSA-2016-03
Draft Ordinance



LSA-2016-03 



FOX TAIL
L O OP

BL
A K

EEVAN

C IR

B EU LAH RD

FRANK REEDER RD

BE
LL

RI
D G

E
D R

H E R I TAGE

O AK S DRBR
ID

LE
W

OO
D 

RD

BAS SW
OO

D

B L VD

W KINGSFIE LD R D

MOBILEHWY

MA

SSENADR

PILCHER
RD

TO
BI

E
DE

AN
 R

D

ARC H
A VE

HIL
REE LN

PATCH LN

INTERSTATE

10

BEL LRIDGE T RL

BOO
LN

BUMPY RD

KENT
LN

WILD
ROSE LN

AN
GY

LA
W

AY

ALOH
A LN

MEAD OW

FIEL D CI
R

CATTLE DR

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

FOXTA IL
LOOP

RACER
LN

ARCH

A
VE

DA
RL

EN
E

CI
R

FE
LD

ON
 L

N

WONDERLAKE
RD

W
IN

DY
 H

IL
L  

RD

AL
DE

R
AV

E

CHEST ERDR

W N INE MILE  RD

RE
BE

L 
RD

SA
LT GRA S SDR W

DEVINEF ARM RD

BEULAH CHURCH RD

SUWANEE RD

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 2,000 4,000 6,000

Ft

LSA-2016-03
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

IS
AA

CS
LN

SF



Pub
Agr

LDR

MDR

Ind

Ind

RMU

LDR

LDR

LDR

Pub

LDR

BO
X E

LD
E R

B L
VD

FRANK REEDER RD

TRELL IS L N

BASSW O OD

BLV D

CA
STL EBERRY

BL VD

MASSENA
DR

PATCH LN

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

BEULAH RD
AL

DE R
AV E

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

W KINGSF IELD RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 700 1,400 2,100

Ft

LSA-2016-03
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

IS
AA

CS
LN

93.01 ACRES



P AG

AG

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

P

RC

I

I

MU-S

MU-S

BO
X E

LD
E R

B L
VD

FRANK REEDER RD

TRELL IS L N

BASSW O OD

BLV D

CA
STL EBERRY

BL VD

MASSENA
DR

PATCH LN

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

BEULAH RD
AL

DE R
AV E

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

W KINGSF IELD RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 700 1,400 2,100

Ft

LSA-2016-03
CURRENT FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

IS
AA

CS
LN

93.01 ACRES



P AG

AG

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

P

RC

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

BO
X E

LD
E R

B L
VD

FRANK REEDER RD

TRELL IS L N

BASSW O OD

BLV D

CA
STL EBERRY

BL VD

MASSENA
DR

PATCH LN

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

BEULAH RD
AL

DE R
AV E

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

W KINGSF IELD RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 700 1,400 2,100

Ft

LSA-2016-03
PROPOSED FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

IS
AA

CS
LN

93.01 ACRES



BO
X E

LD
E R

B L
VD

FRANK REEDER RD

TRELL IS L N

BASSW O OD

BLV D

CA
STL EBERRY

BL VD

MASSENA
DR

PATCH LN

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

BEULAH RD
AL

DE R
AV E

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

W KINGSF IELD RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 700 1,400 2,100

Ft

LSA-2016-03
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

IS
AA

CS
LN

TIMBER

TIMBERVACANT
COUNTY PROPERTY

TIMBER

VACANT

PROPOSED 
JENNINGS SUB

237 LOTS

VAC
SF SF

SF
SF

SF SF
SF

SF
SF

SF

SF

SF

SFSF
SF

SFSF

SF

SF

VACANT

SFSF
SF SF

SF
SF

SF

SF

SF

SF SF
SF

ARBOR RIDGE
SUBDIVISION

ELERAL ESTATES
SUBDIVISION

93.01 ACRES



BEULAH RD

FRANK REEDER RD

TRELLIS  LN
IS

AA
CS

 L
N

ISAACSLN

MASSEN A
DR NATHERLY

DR

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

INTERSTATE 10

AL
DE

R 
AV

E

INTERSTATE 10

W KINGSFI ELD R D

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_20060 500 1,000 1,500

Ft

LSA-2016-03
AERIAL/WETLANDS MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

SF

93.01 ACRES



BO
X E

LD
E R

B L
VD

FRANK REEDER RD

TRELL IS L N

BASSW O OD

BLV D

CA
STL EBERRY

BL VD

MASSENA
DR

PATCH LN

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

BEULAH RD
AL

DE R
AV E

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

W KINGSF IELD RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 700 1,400 2,100

Ft

LSA-2016-03
AIPD MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

IS
AA

CS
LN

SF

AIPD 2

AIPD 1

93.01 ACRES



PUBLIC HEARING SIGN



LOOKING NORTH  ALONG BEULAH ROAD



LOOKING EAST AT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY



LOOKING SOUTH  ALONG BEULAH ROAD



LOOKING WEST ACROSS BEULAH ROAD



ESCAMBIA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, FL 32505 (850) 595-3475

LSft-3dlU-02>

FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION

FPEJ1UI10000

(THIS SECTION FOR OFFICE USE ONLY):

TYPE OF REQUEST: SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDMENT

LARGE SCALE FLU AMENDMENT

§B11I INDUSTRIAL ._.,. MU-S _ . ID-2 T . .
Current FLU: Desired FLU: Zoning: Taken by:.

12/06/2016
Planning Board Public Hearing, date(s):

BCC Public Hearing, proposed date(s):

Fees Paid Receipt #

01/05/2017

Date:
10/26/2016

OWNER'S NAME AND HOME ADDRESS AS SHOWN ON PUBLIC RECORDS OF

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FL

BRIAR RIDGE LLC
Name:

Address:PO BOX 1392

n.. PENSACOLA
City:

Telephone: (

Email:

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:

11975 BEULAH ROAD
Street address:

Subdivision:

Property reference number: Section
34

Size of Property (acres)

Parcel

93

2101

et . FL -y- n a 32591, State: Zip Code:

Township

000
Lot

1N
.Range

31W

Block
001

Page 3 of 7

U





















































Comprehensive Plan  
Large-Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment  

Staff Analysis  
 
General Data 
 
Project Name:  LSA 2016-03 – Beulah Road and Isaac’s Lane  
Location:  11975 Beulah Road     
Parcel #s:  34-1N-31-2101-000-001 
    
Acreage:  93.01 (+/-) acres 
Request:  From Industrial (I) to Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S)   
Agent:  Joe A. Rector, Jr., Dewberry/Prebble-Rish, Agent for Bolley L. 

Johnson, Briar ridge LLC.  
Meeting Dates: Planning Board, December 6, 2016 
   BCC, January 5, 2017 
 
Site Description and Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
 
The agent requests a Future Land Use (FLU) map amendment to change the FLU 
category of a 93.01 (+/-) acres parcel from (I) Industrial FLU to (MU-S) Mixed-Use 
Suburban FLU.  The zoning designation for the referenced parcel is (I) Industrial District 
(non-cumulative). The applicant is aware that the current zoning and proposed FLU are 
not compatible.  The applicant plans on submitting a rezoning request at a later time for 
FLU and Zoning compatibility. The applicant understands that a rezoning approval will 
be necessary to make the FLU compatible.  
 
The subject parcel can be accessed along Isaacs Lane and Beulah Road.  It is located 
north of SR 10 (US 90A)/West Nine Mile Road and south of Interstate 10. The property 
is surrounded by heavy vegetation to the north and to the east.  Residential homes are 
located adjacent to the south and across Isaacs lane to the west.  
 
The applicant has indicated that the proposed activity will be for an approximate 110 lot 
subdivision. This is in anticipations demand for the growth of the expansion of Navy 
Federal Credit Union Campus as they move their headquarters to Escambia County.   
 
The subject parcel had a FLU change from MU-S Mixed-Suburban to (I) Industrial, case 
number LSA-2014-02 (14-3ESR) in 2014. Also the parcel was rezoned from (VAG-2), 
Villages Agricultural District to (ID-2) General Industrial District, case number Z-2014-12 
on September 4, 2014.  
Analysis of Availability of Facilities and Services:  



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

The availability of public facilities and services for the site of a Future Land Use map 
amendment requires analysis of the general demands of its proposed use.  All specific 
level of service (LOS) standards established by Escambia County are evaluated for 
compliance during the review processes prescribed by the LDC for approval of 
proposed development. 
Sanitary Sewer Service. 
CP Policy INF 1.1.7  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the peak LOS 
will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day.  For nonresidential uses, the LOS 
requirements will be based upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC), as may 
be recalculated by the service provider from time to time, and on the size of the 
nonresidential water meter.  Escambia County will continue to work with the water 
providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 

CP Policy INF 1.1.11  Required New Service Connection.  All new structures 
intended for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system unless 
ECUA has determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service to the 
proposed structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the ECUA wastewater 
system will not be issued a building permit until the applicant has obtained the 
appropriate permit from the Health Department. 

Analysis: The adopted level of service standards for sanitary sewer established in 
Comprehensive Plan Policy INF 1.1.7 states that the LOS requirements shall be based 
upon an equivalent residential connection calculated by the provider. The applicant 
must coordinate with the local provider to ensure capacity is available for the project.   
Once the project is submitted, all of the LOS will have to be achieved and the project 
will be further evaluated during the Site Plan Review process. The subject property is 
within the service area of the Emerald Coast Utility Authority (ECUA) for sanitary sewer. 
Connection to ECUA’s system in compliance with its requirements is the responsibility 
of the developer.  
Solid Waste Disposal.   
CP Policy INF 2.1.2  Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide and 
operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste disposal 
needs of the entire County. 
CP Policy INF 2.1.4  Level of Service (LOS) Standards. The LOS standard for solid 
waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 

Analysis: As established in Comprehensive Plan policy INF 2.1.4, the adopted LOS 
standard for solid waste disposal in the county is six pounds per capita per day. The 
Perdido Landfill current build-out of the 424-acre landfill facility is 74 acres. Based on 
population growth projections and estimated annual Class 1 municipal solid waste 
(MSW) received, the estimated remaining life of the landfill is 68 years. Once the project 
is submitted, all of the LOS will be evaluated during the Site Plan Review process. 
Potable Water Service.   

Page 2 of 7 



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

CP Policy INF 4.1.4  Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of potable water facilities concurrent with the demand for such facilities but no 
later than the certificate of occupancy, as created by development or redevelopment 
through the implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 
CP Policy INF 4.1.6  Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer unless 
otherwise funded by the service provider. 
CP Policy INF 4.1.7  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day.  For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon 
an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service provider at 
the time of application.  Escambia County will continue to work with the water providers 
to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 
Analysis: Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA) standard for residential uses, the 
LOS requirements shall be based upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to 
be calculated by the service provider at the time of application. Once the project is 
submitted and in coordination with ECUA, all of the LOS standards will be evaluated, 
during the Site Plan Review process. 
Stormwater Management. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.5  Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such 
facilities as created by development or redevelopment through implementation of the 
Concurrency Management System. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.6  Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the responsibility 
of the developer. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.7  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Stormwater management 
LOS will be monitored through the provisions in the LDC design standards.  
Analysis: The applicant has documented and understands the requirements for 
stormwater management. The applicant acknowledges that separate requirements and 
permitting thru other state agencies such as the Northwest Florida Water Management 
District may be required. If approved, based on the proposed operations, further 
analysis and evaluation will be conducted during the Site Plan Review process.    
The applicant must ensure that all of the required State and Federal agencies are 
contacted and that the required permits are obtained. The presence of sensitive lands 
on site may require a more in-depth assessment by the agencies involved. The County 
stormwater engineer will evaluate the proposed project to ensure all of the stormwater 
management standards are met. Once the project is formally submitted, all of the LOS 
will be evaluated during the site plan review process. 
  
Streets and Access.   

Page 3 of 7 



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

CP Policy MOB 1.1.1  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Levels of Service (LOS) will 
be used to evaluate facility capacity.  Escambia County will adopt LOS standards for all 
roadways as indicated in the LDC.  The standards for SIS facilities may be revised based 
on changes to the federal classification of these roadways.  These standards are not 
regulatory but provide a basis by which the County may monitor congestion and 
coordinate needed improvements with FDOT. 

Analysis: The following language is from an excerpt from the interoffice memorandum 
comments provided by the County’s Transportation and Traffic Operations (TTO) 
Division staff:  
 
LSA-2016-03 – Isaacs Lane is programmed in the current FL-AL Long Range 
Transportation Plan and Escambia County Capital Improvement Program to be widened 
to four lanes. The recommended total right-of-way needed along this portion of Beulah 
Rd is 100 feet. The existing right-of-way of Isaacs Lane is unknown. Section 5-5.3 (e) 
(1) of Escambia County’s Land Development Code states that the developer shall set 
aside the necessary right-of-way for dedication. This location would require 100 feet to 
be donated to the county for right-of-way along Isaacs Lane. 
 
Please note that TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so 
the comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.   
Public School Facilities.   
CP Policy ICE 1.3.1  Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility Planning.  In 
cooperation with the School Board and the local governments within Escambia County, 
the County will implement the Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility Planning 
(herein Interlocal Agreement) that establishes procedures for coordination and sharing 
of information, planning processes, and  implementation. 
Analysis: Representatives from the Escambia County School District will review and 
comment on all proposals that could have an impact in the projected school capacities 
and LOS.  
Analysis of Suitability of Amendment for Proposed Use: 
The suitability of a Future Land Use map amendment for its proposed use requires an 
analysis of the characteristics of the site and its resources relative to Comprehensive 
Plan (CP) goals, objectives, and policies.  For these purposes, suitability is the degree 
to which the existing characteristics and limitations of land and water are compatible 
with the proposed use or development.  Compliance with specific regulations and 
standards established by Escambia County, including those for public facilities and 
services, are evaluated during the development review processes prescribed by the 
LDC for approval of proposed development. 
Impact on Land Use. 

Page 4 of 7 



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

CP Policy FLU 1.3.1  Future Land Use Categories.  General descriptions, range of 
allowable uses, and residential densities and non-residential intensities for all future land 
use categories in Escambia County.  

Analysis: The current Industrial (I) FLU is intended for a mix of industrial development 
and ancillary office and commercial uses that are deemed to be compatible with 
adjacent or nearby properties. Industrial areas shall facilitate continued industrial 
operations within the County and provide jobs and employment security for present and 
future residents. Range of Allowable Uses light to intensive industrial, ancillary retail and 
office. No new residential development is allowed.  
The proposed Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) FLU is intended for a mix of residential and 
non-residential uses while promoting compatible infill development and the separation 
of urban and suburban land uses. Range of Allowable Uses includes residential, retail 
services, professional office, and recreational facilities, public and civic. The residential 
density has a maximum of 25 dwelling per acre and maximum intensity 1.0 floor area 
ration.   
Approval of the amendment would allow residential uses and a range of activities such 
as retail services and office.  
Impact on Wellheads. 
CP Policy CON 1.4.1  Wellhead Protection.  Escambia County will provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current and future 
public water supplies. The provisions will establish specific wellhead protection areas 
and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited activities and materials, within 
those areas. 

Analysis: Further evaluation by the Environmental Division and ECUA will be required 
to ensure standards for wellhead protection areas will be maintained. Once the project 
is submitted, all of the LOS will be evaluated during the Site Plan Review process. 
Impact on Historically Significant Sites. 
CP Policy FLU 1.2.1  State Assistance.  Escambia County will utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in the 
identification of archeological and/or historic sites or structures within the County and will 
utilize guidance, direction, and technical assistance received from this agency. 

Analysis: The applicant stated it will assist in any way possible, however did not 
provide any site requested information from the State of Florida Division of Historical 
Resources (DHR), or the University of West Florida to identify any historic or 
archaeological resources.   
 
Staff was not provided with any historical information from the applicant. 
 
Impact on the Natural Environment. 
CP Policy CON 1.1.2  Wetland and Habitat Indicators.  Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County Soils 

Page 5 of 7 



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s (FFWCC) 
LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands or listed wildlife 
habitat in the review of applications for development approval.  
CP Policy CON 1.1.6  Habitat Protection. Escambia County will coordinate with the 
FDEP, FFWCC, and other state or federal agencies so as to provide the fullest 
protection to marine or wildlife habitats that may be impacted by existing or proposed 
development within the County. 
CP Policy CON 1.3.1  Stormwater Management. Escambia County will protect surface 
water quality by implementing the stormwater management policies of the Infrastructure 
Element to improve existing stormwater management systems and ensure the provision 
of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such facilities. 
CP Policy CON 1.3.6  Wetland Development Provisions. Development in wetlands 
will not be allowed unless sufficient uplands do not exist to avoid a taking.  In this case, 
development in wetlands will be restricted to allow residential density uses as indicated 
by the LDC: 
CP CON 1.5.4 Extraction and Reclamation Review. Escambia County will subject all new 
or expanded resource extraction and reclamation activities to a mandatory development 
review process to assess technical standards for public safety, environmental protection, 
and engineering design.  

CP Policy CON 1.6.3 Tree Protection.  Escambia County will protect trees through 
LDC provisions. 

The north and easterly side of the site have been identified with wetlands and hydric 
soils using Escambia County GIS layers.   
 
Analysis: The applicant has provided staff with wetlands information from County GIS. 
Staff’s review of the County’s GIS layer shows a large amount of wetlands on the 
northern and eastern side of the parcel.  The applicant must ensure that all of the 
required State and Federal agencies are contacted and that the required permits are 
obtained. The presence of sensitive lands on site may require a more in-depth 
evaluation by the agencies involved. Escambia County staff will evaluate the proposed 
project to ensure all of the standards for wetlands protection indicated in the LDC, are 
met. Once the project is formally submitted, it will be evaluated during the Site Plan 
Review process. 
 
SUMMARY: The proposed project shall avoid any potential impacts to environmentally 
sensitive areas and should preserve the natural function of wetlands and natural 
resources on the subject parcel. Staff will need a more in-depth evaluation of the land to 
conclude that the proposed development could satisfy all of the requirements listed 
within the suitability analysis. 
 
CP Objective FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map Designations.  Designate land uses on 
the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, compact development in 
urban areas, and support development compatible with the protection and preservation 
of rural areas.” 

Page 6 of 7 



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

Analysis: The proposed amendment is in close proximity to the extensive infrastructure 
that is accessed by other similar uses within the area. The development promotes the 
principle of good development by taking advantage of an existing roads and interstate 
highway as a close proximity for development. As a result of the proximity to similar 
existing uses, the proposed amendment would reduce transportation costs, including 
the per capita costs to consumers to own and operate vehicles, road and parking facility 
costs, traffic accidents and pollution emissions.  
 
The proposed amendment is part of a strategy directing this type of development to the 
central part of the county, away from sensitive coastal areas to the South, and USDA 
prime soils and farmlands to the North; The proposed Industrial use expansion will 
direct economic growth and the associated land development to an area that will 
complement the existing growth patterns of development in the vicinity of the property, 
thereby minimizing the adverse impacts to natural resources and the existing 
ecosystems.  
 
The proposed amendment will ensure that the proposed development is conducted in 
an efficient manner. Specifically, the proximity of the subject property to other existing   
development will provide for an efficient integration of infrastructure and services that 
will conserve both water and energy.     
 
As previously elaborated, the site has been evaluated for potable water, sanitary sewer, 
solid waste disposal, stormwater management, and traffic concurrency. The adopted 
levels of service would appear to be maintained with the proposed subdivision 
development of the parcel. If the amendment is approved, the parcel must go through 
the quasi-judicial rezoning process. The completed application packet will then be 
reviewed and evaluated for concurrency as part of the Site Development Review 
process. 
 

Page 7 of 7 



 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Development Services Manager 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: Tommy Brown, Transportation Planner 

Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 

THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE:  November 9, 2016 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments  
 
TTO Staff has reviewed the agenda for the upcoming Planning Board meeting 
scheduled for December 6, 2016. Please see staff comments below: 

 
• LSA-2016-03 – Isaacs Lane is programmed in the current FL-AL Long Range 

Transportation Plan and Escambia County Capital Improvement Program to be 
widened to four lanes. The recommended total right-of-way needed along this 
portion of Beulah Rd is 100 feet. The existing right-of-way of Isaacs Lane is 
unknown. Section 5-5.3 (e) (1) of Escambia County’s Land Development Code 
states that the developer shall set aside the necessary right-of-way for 
dedication. This location would require 100 feet to be donated to the county for 
right-of-way along Isaacs Lane. 
 

 
Please note that TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so 
the comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.  
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 
 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 





 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2016-___ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
PART II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; 
AMENDING CHAPTER 7, “THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,” 
POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE  2030 
FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE 
CATEGORY OF A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 1N, 
RANGE 31W, PARCEL NUMBER 2101-000-001  TOTALING 93.01 (+/-) 
ACRES, LOCATED EAST OF ISAACS LANE, FROM INDUSTRIAL (I) 
TO MIXED USE SUBURBAN (MU-S); PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN 
THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County 
adopted its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and  
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County 
Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce 
comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 
forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to approve 
changes (amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that 
the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Escambia County, Florida, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent 
 
This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 
authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, 
Florida Statutes. 
 
Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 
This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Large Scale Amendment 
2016-03."   
 
 
 
PB: 12-06-16 Page 1 
Re: LSA-2016-03 
Draft 1 

 



 
Section 3.  Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map 
 
The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 
2030, as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all 
notations, references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the 
following future land use changes: 
 

A parcel within Section 34, Township 1N, Range 31W, parcel number 
2101-000-001 and totaling 93.01 (+/-) acres, located East of Isaacs Lane, 
as more particularly described in the Boundary Survey description 
produced by Merrill Parker Shaw, Inc., Professional Engineering & 
Surveying Services as Exhibit A, from Industrial (I) to Mixed Use Suburban 
(MU-S).  

 

Section 4.     Severability 
 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 5. Inclusion in the Code 
 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that 
the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or 
relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PB: 12-06-16 Page 2 
Re: LSA-2016-03 
Draft 1 

 



 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date  
 
Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c)(4), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not 
become effective until 31 days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies 
Escambia County that the plan amendment package is complete.  If timely challenged, 
this Ordinance shall not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity 
or the Administration Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be 
in compliance.     
 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2016. 
 

      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
    OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
  

      By: _________________________________ 
Douglas B. Underhill, IV, Chairman  

ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 
 
 
By: ___________________________    

Deputy Clerk  
(SEAL) 
 
 
ENACTED: 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  

PB: 12-06-16 Page 3 
Re: LSA-2016-03 
Draft 1 

 



Exhibit A



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. B.           
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter

6, Section 6-0.3 "Definitions", Subsection "I" and Subsection "S"
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 6, Section
6-0.3 "Definitions", Subsection "I" and Subsection "S"

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC) Chapter 6, Section 6-0.3
"Terms defined," subsection "I" by adding "Incompatible Development" and Subsection
"S" by adding in "Spot Zoning" into the LDC.

BACKGROUND:
These proposed changes are to add additional terms (Incompatible Development and
Spot Zoning) into Chapter 6 Section 6-0.3 "Definitions".

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith D. Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments
are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will  be filed with the Department of State following



This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will  be filed with the Department of State following
adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance



LECAL REVIEW

(COUNTY DEPARTMENT USE ONLY)

D Spot Zoning and Incompatible Development Definitions Ordinance

11-2-2016
Dale:

Date requested back by: 11-10-2016

John C Fisher
Requested by:

n. .. , 595-4651
Phone Number:

(LEGAL USE ONLY)

Legal Review by i V-

Date Received: ^7/Ollf

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency.

Not approved.

Make subject to legal signoff.

Additional comments:



 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2016-____ 1 
 2 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 5 
AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 6, SECTION 6-0.3 “DEFINITIONS,” 6 
SUBSECTION “I” BY ADDING “INCOMPATIBLE DEVELOPMENT” IN 7 
TERMS DEFINED; AMENDING CHAPTER 6, SECTION 6-0.3 8 
“DEFINITIONS,” SUBSECTION “S” BY ADDING “SPOT ZONING” IN 9 
TERMS DEFINED; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 10 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 11 
DATE. 12 
 13 

WHEREAS, Section 125.01, Florida Statutes, authorizes the Board of County 14 
Commissioners to establish regulations for land development in the unincorporated 15 
areas of the County pursuant to general law 16 

WHEREAS, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners finds that 17 
modifying the terms defined within its Land Development Code to define “incompatible 18 
development” and “spot zoning”  promotes the efficient regulation of land use;  19 

WHEREAS, through its Land Development Code, the Escambia County Board of  20 
County Commissioners desires to preserve the county as a desirable community in 21 
which to live, vacation and do business; and  22 
 23 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 24 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 25 
 26 
SECTION 1. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land 27 
Development Code of Escambia County, Chapter 6, Section 6-0.3 “Terms defined,” 28 
subsection “I” is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words 29 
stricken are deletions): 30 

Sec. 6-0.3 Terms defined. 31 

As used within the LDC, the following terms have the meanings established here: 32 

- I - 33 

Identification sign. A sign giving the name, and/or address of a building, business 34 
development or establishment on the premises where it is located. Also known as name 35 
plate sign.  36 

PB 12-06-2016 Page 1 
Re: Chapter 6 Incompatible Development and Spot Zoning Defined. 
DRAFT PB2 
 



 

Illuminated sign. A sign lighted by or exposed to artificial lighting either by lights on, or 1 
in the sign, or directed towards the sign.  2 

Impervious surface. Any surface that does not allow or only minimally allows the 3 
infiltration of water. Such highly impermeable surfaces include structure roofs, regular 4 
concrete and asphaltic pavements, and other surfaces for which runoff coefficients no 5 
less than 0.90 are typically used for stormwater management calculations.  6 

Impervious surface ratio. An objective measure of the intensity of land use determined 7 
by dividing the total area of all impervious surfaces covering a lot by the total area of the 8 
lot.  9 

Improvement. Any manmade permanent item, fixture, or facility that becomes part of, is 10 
placed upon, or is affixed to real property, including structures, street and alley 11 
pavements, curbs and gutters, walkway pavements, water supply mains, sanitary 12 
sewers, storm sewers or drains, permanent signs, landscaping, and permanent 13 
reference monuments and control points.  14 

Incompatible development: A condition in which a land use, activity, or condition is  15 
unable to coexist in relative proximity to another existing land use, activity, or condition 16 
in a stable fashion over time such that the existing land use, activity, or condition is 17 
unduly negatively impacted either directly or indirectly by the development.   18 

Industrial-related activity. An activity in support of or accessory to industry.  19 

Industry or industrial use. A use in which the primary activity is the manufacture of 20 
materials or products, including their fabrication, assembly, rebuilding, treatment, 21 
processing, finishing, extraction, reduction, and bulk storage. Industry or industrial use 22 
may be further characterized as either of the following:  23 

Heavy industry. An industry primarily engaged in the basic processing of 24 
materials or products predominantly from extracted or raw materials, or an 25 
industry otherwise having significant external effects or risks due to its scale of 26 
operations, processes or materials involved, or outdoor activity or storage 27 
required. Heavy industry includes salvage yards, solid waste transfer facilities, 28 
materials recovery facilities, recovered materials processing facilities, recycling 29 
facilities, resource recovery facilities, volume reduction plants, landfills, concrete 30 
and asphalt batch plants, mineral extraction, paper mills, power plants, chemical 31 
plants, refineries, slaughter houses, rendering plants, etc.  32 

PB 12-06-2016 Page 2 
Re: Chapter 6 Incompatible Development and Spot Zoning Defined. 
DRAFT PB2 
 



 

Light industry. An industry primarily engaged in the indoor fabrication, 1 
compounding, processing, assembly, or treatment of finished or semi-finished 2 
products from previously prepared materials or components in a manner which is 3 
unlikely to cause undesirable effects outside of the building enclosing the 4 
industrial activity. Light industry includes research and development activities, 5 
printing and binding, warehousing, and the manufacture of electrical appliances 6 
and electronic equipment, apparel, food products, beverages, tools and 7 
hardware, furniture, pharmaceuticals, etc.  8 

Infill development. The development of new housing or other land uses on vacant or 9 
underutilized land in existing developed areas, focusing on the reuse and renovation of 10 
obsolete or underutilized buildings and sites.  11 

Informational sign. An on-premises sign commonly associated with, but not limited to, 12 
information and directions necessary or convenient for visitors coming on the property, 13 
including signs marking entrances and exits, parking areas, circulation direction, rest 14 
rooms, and pickup and delivery areas. Also known as a directional sign.  15 

Infrastructure. Facilities and services needed to sustain land use activities, including 16 
streets, potable water service, wastewater service, solid waste facilities, stormwater 17 
management facilities, power grids, telecommunication facilities, and public schools.  18 

Intensity. An objective measurement of the extent to which land may be developed or 19 
used, including the consumption or use of space above, on, or below the ground; the 20 
use of or demand on natural resources; and the use of or demand on facilities or 21 
services.  22 

Invasive species. A non-indigenous or exotic species that is not native to the 23 
ecosystem under consideration and that has the ability to establish self-sustaining, 24 
expanding, free-living populations that may cause economic and/or environmental 25 
harm, or harm to human health. 26 

SECTION 2. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land 27 
Development Code of Escambia County, Chapter 6, Section 6-0.3 “Terms defined,” 28 
subsection “S” is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words 29 
stricken are deletions): 30 

- S - 31 

Salvage yard.  An industrial facility or area for the collection, storage, sale or exchange, 32 
disassembly, shredding, compaction, bailing, or other handling of scrap or discarded 33 

PB 12-06-2016 Page 3 
Re: Chapter 6 Incompatible Development and Spot Zoning Defined. 
DRAFT PB2 
 



 

material or equipment for salvage, including metals, paper, rags, tires, bottles and cans, 1 
motor vehicles, machinery, appliances, and structural steel.  2 

Sand dune.  Naturally occurring accumulations of sand in ridges or mounds landward 3 
of the beach.   4 

Screened or screening.  A method of visually shielding or obscuring a structure or use 5 
from view by fencing, walls, berms, or vegetation.  6 

Seawall.  A wall or an embankment designed to halt the encroachment of a waterbody.  7 

Sediment.  Mineral or organic particulates that have been transported from their origin 8 
by wind or water and deposited at another location.  9 

Sedimentation.  The deposition of sediment.   10 

Self-storage facility.  A building or group of buildings containing separate individual 11 
storage units available for lease or rent for varying periods of time for the self-service 12 
storage of goods.  Self-service storage facilities may also be known as mini-13 
warehouses. 14 

Semi-impervious surface.  Any surface that is more resistant to the infiltration of water 15 
than a pervious surface, but more easily allows infiltration than an impervious surface.  16 
Such moderately impermeable surfaces include compacted stone, gravel, recycled 17 
asphalt, shell, or clay serving vehicular traffic; paver stones and “pervious” concrete; 18 
and other surfaces for which runoff coefficients no less than 0.60 are typically used for 19 
stormwater management calculations. 20 

Setback.  The required minimum distance from a property line or other boundary line 21 
that establishes the area within which a structure is allowed to be erected or placed.   22 

Shooting range.  An indoor or outdoor facility designed for archery, paintball, or the 23 
discharge of firearms, including rifles, shotguns, pistols, muzzle loading and black 24 
powder guns.  The term “shooting range” includes facilities for the purpose of sport 25 
shooting or for military or law enforcement training, including mock hazard response, 26 
target practice, skeet and trap. 27 

Shopping center.  An integrated group of retail sales and service establishments that is 28 
planned, constructed, and managed to function as a unit, with customer and employee 29 
parking provided on site and the delivery of goods separated from customer access.  30 

Sign. Any object, device, display, or structure, or part thereof, which is positioned and 31 
used to advertise, identify, announce, direct or attract attention, or otherwise visually 32 
communicate a message outdoors using words, letters, numerals, emblems, figures, 33 
symbols, pictures, or other images.  Signs are more specifically defined by form and use 34 
in the signage standards of Chapter 5.  35 

PB 12-06-2016 Page 4 
Re: Chapter 6 Incompatible Development and Spot Zoning Defined. 
DRAFT PB2 
 



 

Sign area.  The surface area of a sign shall be computed as including the entire area 1 
within the smallest rectangle, triangle, circle or other regular geometric form, or 2 
aggregates thereof, encompassing all of the display area of the sign and including all of 3 
the elements of the matter displayed. Base, apron, supports and other structural 4 
members not bearing advertising matter shall not be included in computation of surface 5 
area. Border or trim shall be included in computation of surface area. One side only of a 6 
double-sided sign shall be used in computing sign area where they are placed back to 7 
back on a single sign structure and are at no point more than three feet apart.  8 

Sign face.  The area or display surface used for the message.   9 

Sign triangle.  See visual clearance section of landscaping provisions. 10 

Silviculture. The management of forest establishment, growth, composition, health, 11 
and quality to produce lumber, pulp wood, or other forest products on a sustainable 12 
basis.  The term “silviculture” includes site preparation, planting, prescribed burning, 13 
harvesting, and replanting activities. 14 

Site plan.  A scaled plan depicting proposed site development or redevelopment within 15 
a parcel as required by the LDC for compliance review and approval.  16 

Solid waste.  Materials regulated by the state as solid waste, including sludge from a 17 
waste treatment works, water supply treatment plant, or air pollution control facility; or 18 
garbage, rubbish, refuse, special waste, or other discarded material, including solid, 19 
liquid, semisolid or contained gaseous material resulting from domestic, industrial, 20 
commercial, mining, agricultural, or governmental operations. 21 

Solid waste collection point.  A site for the collection of non-hazardous solid waste 22 
from individual generators and transport to waste transfer, material recovery, waste 23 
disposal or other solid waste management facilities. 24 

Solid waste disposal facility.  See "Landfill."  25 

Solid waste transfer facility.  An industrial facility where non-hazardous solid waste 26 
from collection vehicles is consolidated, temporarily stored, and may be sorted, for 27 
subsequent transport to other facilities for processing or final disposal. 28 

Spot zoning. Rezoning of a lot or parcel of land that will create an isolated zoning 29 
district that may be incompatible with the adjacent and nearby zoning districts and uses, 30 
or as spot zoning is otherwise defined by Florida law. 31 

Sprawl or urban sprawl. A haphazard development pattern of dispersed and strip 32 
growth in suburbs and rural areas and along highways that is characterized by low 33 
density, automobile-dependent development with either a single use or multiple uses 34 
that are not functionally related, requiring the extension of public facilities and services 35 

PB 12-06-2016 Page 5 
Re: Chapter 6 Incompatible Development and Spot Zoning Defined. 
DRAFT PB2 
 



 

in an inefficient manner, and failing to provide a clear separation between urban and 1 
rural uses.  2 

Stable, public.  A structure where horses, ponies or other domesticated equines are 3 
kept for sale or hire, including their boarding, training, breeding, and riding.  4 

Stable, private. An accessory structure where horses, ponies or other domesticated 5 
equines are kept for the private use of the occupants of the premises and their guests, 6 
and not kept for hire. 7 

Stadium or arena.  A structure with tiers of spectator seats rising around all or part of 8 
an open or enclosed field or place used for athletic, entertainment, or other major 9 
events.  Stadiums may include food service, retail stores, meeting rooms and other 10 
incidental uses customarily accessory to the principal use. 11 

Start of construction.  The date the building permit was issued, provided the actual 12 
start of construction, repair, reconstruction, or improvement was within 180 days of the 13 
permit date. The actual start means the first placement of permanent construction of a 14 
structure (including a manufactured home) on a site, such as the pouring of slabs or 15 
footings, installation of piles, construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of 16 
excavation or the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation.  Permanent 17 
construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; nor 18 
does it include the installation of streets or walkways; nor does it include excavation for 19 
a basement, footings, piers or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does 20 
it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or 21 
sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure.  This definition 22 
does not apply to new construction or substantial improvements under the Coastal 23 
Barrier Resources Act (P.L. 97-348).  24 

Storage.  The placement, accumulation, or keeping of things, or the condition of things 25 
placed, accumulated, or kept, in a specific location for preservation, future use, or 26 
disposal. 27 

Storage, outdoor or outside.  The storage of any equipment, goods, junk, material, 28 
merchandise, or vehicles outside of an enclosed building in the same area on a site for 29 
more than 72 hours. 30 

Stormwater.  The flow of water which results from, and which occurs immediately 31 
following, a rainfall event.  32 

Stormwater management.  Any technique, apparatus, or facility that controls or 33 
manages the path, storage, quality, or rate of release of stormwater runoff, including 34 
storm sewers, retention and detention ponds, drainage channels and swales, and inlet 35 
and outlet structures. 36 

PB 12-06-2016 Page 6 
Re: Chapter 6 Incompatible Development and Spot Zoning Defined. 
DRAFT PB2 
 



 

Stormwater management plan.  A professionally certified plan to manage stormwater 1 
runoff from development by providing concurrent control of erosion, water quality, 2 
sedimentation, and flooding in compliance with all applicable regulatory authorities. 3 

Stormwater management system.  The designed features of the property which 4 
collect, convey, channel, hold, inhibit, or divert the movement of stormwater.  5 

Stormwater pond.  A stormwater storage facility that may be further characterized as:   6 

Detention pond.  A facility for the collection and temporary storage of stormwater 7 
runoff for treatment through physical, chemical, or biological processes and for 8 
attenuating discharge with subsequent gradual controlled discharge.   9 

Retention pond.  A facility for the collection and prevention of discharge of 10 
stormwater runoff surface waters by complete on-site storage where the capacity to 11 
store the given volume must be provided by a decrease of stored water caused only 12 
by percolation through soil, evaporation, or evapotranspiration (loss of water from 13 
soil by both evaporation and transpiration from plants)  14 

Dry pond.  A facility designed to collect and store stormwater runoff in a normally dry 15 
basin.  16 

Wet pond.  A facility designed to collect and store stormwater runoff in a 17 
permanently wet impoundment with a gently sloping littoral zone shelf designed to 18 
support the growth of rooted aquatic plants.  A wet pond provides for treatment 19 
through physical, chemical, and biological processes.  20 

Story.  That portion of a building included between the surface of any floor and the 21 
surface of the next floor above, or if there is no floor above it, then the space between 22 
such floor and the ceiling next above it.  In computing the number of stories in a 23 
building, a basement shall not be considered a story if more than one-half of its height is 24 
below the mean grade.  For areas governed by FDEP or FEMA elevation requirements, 25 
the number of stories in a building shall be counted from the minimum required 26 
elevation established by FDEP or FEMA for the habitable first floor, whichever is 27 
higher.  28 

Street.  A public or private right-of-way designed and used primarily for vehicular 29 
transportation, including all of the land lying between the right-of-way lines delineating 30 
the access way, whether improved or unimproved, and typically affording the principal 31 
means of access to adjoining land.  The term “street” includes the terms “road,” 32 
“avenue,” “boulevard,” “lane,” “thoroughfare” and “highway” when used for such access 33 
ways.  However, the term does not include alleys, access ways such as easements and 34 
rights-of-way intended solely for limited utility purposes, or access ways and driveways 35 

PB 12-06-2016 Page 7 
Re: Chapter 6 Incompatible Development and Spot Zoning Defined. 
DRAFT PB2 
 



 

designed as part of or access to on-site parking.  Streets may be classified as the 1 
following:  2 

Arterial street, major.  A street providing service that is relatively continuous and of 3 
relatively high traffic volume, long trip length, and high operating speed, including 4 
every United States numbered highway.  5 

Arterial street, minor.  A street providing connections between major activity centers 6 
of the county, and which augments the major arterial system for local and inter-7 
county traffic by feeding traffic from collector and local street systems onto major 8 
arterials.   9 

Collector street.  A street providing service that is of relatively moderate traffic 10 
volume, moderate trip length, and moderate operating speed, and which distributes 11 
traffic between local streets or arterial streets.  12 

Local street.  A street providing service that is of relatively low traffic volume, short 13 
average trip length, or minimal through traffic movements, and high quantity land 14 
access for abutting property.  15 

Private street.  A privately owned and maintained street. 16 

Public street.  A street under the jurisdiction of and maintained by a public entity for 17 
public travel. 18 

Structural alteration.  Any change in the supporting members of a building, such as 19 
bearing walls, bearing partitions, columns, beams or girders, or any complete rebuilding 20 
of the roof, exterior walls or any other change which results in increased or decreased 21 
height of a structure.   22 

Structure.  Anything constructed, assembled or erected, the use of which requires 23 
location on or in the ground, or attachment to something having location on or in the 24 
ground.   The term “structure” does not include unroofed paved surfaces, such as 25 
sidewalks, driveways, parking lots, or paved areas used for sports activities.  For the 26 
purposes of floodplain management, “structure” means a walled and roofed building, 27 
including a gas or liquid storage tank, which is principally above ground, as well as a 28 
manufactured home.  29 

Subdivision.  The division of a parcel of land, whether improved or unimproved, into 30 
three or more contiguous lots or parcels of land or, if the establishment of a new street 31 
is involved, any division of the parcel.  When appropriate to the context, the term 32 
“subdivision” refers to the process of subdividing or to the land subdivided.  33 

Subdivision, recorded.  The plat of an approved subdivision as recorded in the office 34 
of the Clerk of the Court, Escambia County, according to Florida Statutes. 35 

PB 12-06-2016 Page 8 
Re: Chapter 6 Incompatible Development and Spot Zoning Defined. 
DRAFT PB2 
 



 

Substance abuse treatment facility. A state licensed residential or inpatient facility 1 
which provides professionally planned and directed clinical treatment in a structured 2 
live-in environment within a nonhospital setting on a 24-hours-per-day, 7-days-per-week 3 
basis, designed to reduce or eliminate the misuse of drugs and alcohol and promote a 4 
healthy, drug-free lifestyle. 5 

Substantial construction.  All required permits necessary to continue the development 6 
have been obtained; permitted clearing and grading has been completed on a 7 
significant portion of the development subject to a single final development order; and 8 
the actual construction of buildings or water and sewer lines, streets, or the stormwater 9 
management system has been completed on a significant portion of the development or 10 
is progressing in a manner that significantly moves the entire development toward 11 
completion of construction.   12 

Substantial damage.  Damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost 13 
of restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 14 
percent of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.  The “cost” of 15 
the restoration is the fair market value of the material and services necessary to 16 
accomplish the entire restoration and is unaffected by incremental restoration work.[MO 17 
202] 18 

Substantial improvement.  Any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other 19 
improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the 20 
market value of the structure before the improvement or repair is started.  If the 21 
structure has incurred "substantial damage," any repairs are considered substantial 22 
improvement regardless of the actual repair work performed.  The term does not, 23 
however, include either of the following:  24 

1. Any project for improvement of a building required to correct existing health, 25 
sanitary, or safety code violations identified by the Building Official and that are the 26 
minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions. 27 

2. Any alteration of an historic structure provided the alteration will not preclude the 28 
structure's continued designation as a historic structure and the alteration is 29 
approved by variance issued according to the provisions of the LDC.  30 

Suitability.  The degree to which the existing characteristics and limitations of land and 31 
water are compatible with a proposed use or development.  32 

Surface water.  Water upon the surface of the earth, whether contained in bounds 33 
created naturally or artificially or diffused.  Water from natural springs is classified as 34 
surface water when it exits from the spring onto the earth’s surface.  35 

 36 

 37 

PB 12-06-2016 Page 9 
Re: Chapter 6 Incompatible Development and Spot Zoning Defined. 
DRAFT PB2 
 



 

SECTION 3. Severability. 1 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 2 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 3 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 4 
 5 
SECTION 4. Inclusion in Code.  6 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 7 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2016); and that the sections, 8 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 9 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “chapter,” or such other 10 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 11 
 12 
SECTION 5. Effective Date.  13 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 14 
 15 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2016. 16 
 17 

 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 18 
 OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 19 

  20 
      By: _______________________________ 21 
           Douglas B. Underhill, Chairman 22 
 23 

ATTEST:    PAM CHILDERS                                             24 
    Clerk of the Circuit Court 25 

 26 
  By: __________________________    27 
    Deputy Clerk  28 
(SEAL) 29 

 30 

ENACTED: 31 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    32 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  33 

 34 

 35 

PB 12-06-2016 Page 10 
Re: Chapter 6 Incompatible Development and Spot Zoning Defined. 
DRAFT PB2 
 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_November 1, 2016 Draft Regular Planning Board Meeting Minutes
	Att2_Monthly Action Follow-Up
	Att3_Six Month Outlook
	PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE
	SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR DECEMBER 2016

	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the 2030 Future Land Use Map, LSA-2016-03
	Att1_LSA-2016-03
	LSA-2016-03
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	Exsiting FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial/Wetland Map
	AIPD Map
	Photos
	Application
	Letter of Request
	Warranty Deed
	Applicant Data and Analysis
	Boundary Survey
	Staff Anaylsis
	TTO Comments

	Att2_Draft Ordinance
	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 6, Section 6-0.3 _Definitions_, Subsection _I_ and Subsection _S_
	Att1_Draft Ordinance

